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| 1. Name of Property

historic name_Presbyterian Rest for Convalescents

other names/site number _Y.W.C.A of White Plains and Central Westchester

2. Location

stre:;,t & number _69 North Broadway -~ ' '[I.\I!-A]' not far publication
city or town \_Nﬁite Plains ‘ — i IN/A] vicinity |
state NewYor_k code _NY - county- Westchester ﬁ:ode 118 zip code _10605 -

3. State/Federal Agency Gertification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Pressrvation Act, as amendad, | hereby certify that this [X] nomination [ ] request
for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of Historic Places
and meets ths procsdural and professional-requirements as sat forth in 36 CFR Part 60. in my opinion, the preperty [X] meets [ ]
dogs not meet the National Register criteria. | recommend that this property be considered significant [ ] nationally ['] statewide

[X] locally. ([ ]see continuaticn sheet for additional comments.) :

eﬁ-&”{b@ QHW Acting Deputy Commissioner, Division for Historic Preservation é//m ///

Signature of certifying official/ Title : Date

New York State Office of Parks, Recreation & Historic Preservation
: State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property [ ] meets [ | does not meet the National Register criteria. ([ ] see continuation sheet for additional
comments.) - - ‘ : .

Signature of certifying official/Title ‘ : Date .

State or Federal agency and bureau

2. National Park Service Certification

| hereby cerify that the property is: . : Signature of the Keaper ) date of action
[ ] entered in the National Reglster o . ‘ ‘ :
[ ]see centinuation sheet

[ ] determined eligible far the National Register
[ 1 see continuation sheet -

[ ]determined nof eligible for the
Naticnal Register

[ Tremoved from the Natlonal Register

t ] ather (explain)'
, -




Presbyterian Rest for Convaies’ce’nés
Name.of Property

- Westchester County, New York
County and Stats

5. Classification

Ownership of Property Category of Property
- {check as many boxes as apply) - {Chack only one box)
Ix] private [} building{s}
[ ] public-local { ]district
[ ]public-State [ ]site
[ ]public-Federat [ ]structure
' [ ]object

" Name of relateﬁ:muitipié property listing

(Enter “N/A" if property is-not part of a multiple property listing}

_NA

Number of Resources within Property

-{Do not include previously listed resources in the‘ceuni)

Contributing Noncontributing
1 1 buildings
C_ ' sites
structures
' . objects
1 1 TOTAL -

" Number of contributing resources previoixsly '
- listed in the National Register

0

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions ,
(enter categories from instructionsy

Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions}.

- _HEALTH CARE: Rest Home SOCIAL: civic
7. éescripticn
Architectural Classification i\ﬂateriais

{Enter categories from instructions)-

LATE 19" and EARLY 20" Century Revivals:

Tudor Revival

Narrative Descrsptlan

- other .

(Er;ter saiegos‘les from |ﬁstruct|ons)

foundation brsc§< and concrete

walls _brick

roof ceramic file

. {Describe the hisioric and current condition of the property an one or more confinuation, sheeis)
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Narratlve Description

The former Plesbytenan Rest for Convalescents (Rest} sits on a large lot at 69 North Broadway, in the
city of White Plains, Westchester County, New York. The original building, built in 1913, is located
towards the rear (west side) of the lot. A large addition, minimally connected to it and built in 1972, is
located towards the front (east end) of the lot. The entire complex is substantially set back from the .
sidewalk. . Parking lots have been added on the south and west sides. This nomination consists of one
contributing building, The 1972 addition does not contribute to the significance of the original building,

The original Rest isa thlee and-one- half story Tudor Revival complex comprlsed of two long wmgs

connected by a short central portion which together form an H-plan. The first two stories are faced in

brick, while the third and attic stories are faced in stucco and half timbering. There are many
picturesque details. The gabled roof'is tiled, with dormer windows and chimneys. '

Exterior

* The east facade is the prindipal entry front. Here the two wings join the central portion to form a-

pavilion plan (one half of the H-plan). The first story is largely hidden by the 1972 addition. At the '
second story, a gabled wing projects at both the south and north ends of the fagade. Each of these is
faced in brick at the second story, with stone trim. The portion of the second story facing east (towards
the addltlon) on either wing is arranged as a porch, with three Tudor-arched openings on the easternmost -

| “portion and one Tudor-arched opening on either side (south and north). The third story is faced in half-

timbers, with three rectangular windows on the easternmost portion (cotresponding to the three Tudor-
arched openings in the porch below); on the notth side of the northern wing there are three irregularly
spaced such windows. The fourth story of both wings is a half~Tudor gable, supported on one large
wooden bracket at both edges and a series of smaller console brackets running directly below the gable.

In the center of each gable, directly above the row of console brackets, is an ornamental wooden shield. |

Abave that is a set of four closely set rectangular Wlndows above those, in the uppermost part of the

gable, is a set of two small vents.

The central connecting section is organized around a large central entrance, with a set of French doors to
either side. The entrance is faced in stone, and is Tudor-arched; the area above the double-doors, filling
the Tudor-arched space is a.fan light. To the left and right, in the lower portion of the stone facing
surrounding the doors, is a narrow window. Above the Tudor arch is a wooden half-timber gable with a
vestigial tile roof, supported on two sets of paired ormamentally-carved wooden brackets. Each set of

French doors is set within a stone-faced frame, and includes leaded glass transoms. Each has four doors,
each divided into ten lights. Where the centfal section joins the projecting wings, there is a small brick-
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faced diagonal wall malcmg the transltlon each with a square leaded-glass window. “The roof above the
central section is tiled, and has three boIdIy prcuectmg gable-end half-timbered dormer mndows as well
as two chimneys.

The west elévation of the bﬁilding thirrors the east fagade, in that it is arranged as a pavilion with two
wings flanking a central connecting section (balf of the H-plan). Unlike the east front, the wings —
though similar in having the first two stories faced in brick, with stucco and half-timbering in the upper
stories and the attic story a gable end — are asymmetrical. The gable ends of either wing are similar to

~ the gablied ends of the east front, and to each other, incliding the central ornamental woodcn shield. The
lower three stories of the wings, however, are different. - . '

" The north wing has a two-story wooden‘porch fronting its first and second stories. Each story of the
porch is supported by four pairs of wooden posts rising to ornamental wooden brackets. The third story
. of the north wing is simply stuccoed with minimal half-timbering, and three simple rectangular
“windows. The south side of the north wing is irregularly designed, with five simple rectangular
windows at the first and second stories, plus a projecting two-story portion with a complex window,
including transoms, and — between the five windows and the projecting two-story portion, a projecting -
“angled brick chimney rising from the ground to well above the tiled xoof. The roof has three boldly -
- projecting gable-end half-timbered dormer windows plus an additional chimney. '

The south wing has no porch. Its first story is simply faced in brick, ‘with two simple rectangular
windows and a secondary entrance. The second story is almost entirely taken up with three large sets of
windows with louvers, suggesting a screened in sun-porch; the three windows are framed in wood with
ornamental brackets. The third story has three slightly smaller windowed areas, set between wooden
bracketed posts.. The north side of the south wing has. simple rectangular windows at;the first and second
stories, but no projecting two-story portion and no projecting angled brick chimney. Its tiled roof has

. two, not three, boldly projecting gable-end half-timbered dormer windows, and no chimney.

The connecting central section is organized as a projecting gable-end wing — with narrow recessed bays
on either side — mirroring the ends of the two wings. The first and second stories are faced in brick with

" simple rectangular windows, but the second story also has a projecting bay window supported on
wooden brackets wand with a shallow roof. The third story is stuccoed, with three simple rectangular -
windows; the attic story is the stuccoed and halt- t1mbered gable end, flanked by a gabled half- tlmbeled
dormer wmdow on the roof to the south. ‘

The south elevation — whose east and west pOrtidns form the south wings of the front (east) and rear-
(west) fronts — is long and asymmetrically organized. Its first-and second stories are faced in brick with
simple rectangular windows. The east end includes the side bay of the Tudor-arched porch of the south



(8-88)

NPS Form 10-900a . NP o , .OMB No, 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

‘National Register of Hlstorlc Places
Contmuatlon Sheet :

Presbyterian Rest for Convalescents

Section _7___ Page 3 ) ' Westchester County, New York

' win.g of the east front, There is a projecting bay roughly in the center of this fron; it rises to a broad,

stuccoed and half-timbered gable end dormer window, twice the size of those already described.

'Fromthis projecting bay extending to the éast the third story is stuccoed and half-timbered, while

extending west from the projecting bay the third story is simply stuccoed. There is no attic story here,
just a sloping tiled roof, with a single gable-end dormer to the east and three to the west. :

The north elevation is identical in design to the south elevation. -
Interior

The interior is orgamzed asa basement and first, second and third floors. There are three major publlc

- interior spaces, all on the first floor — the dlnmg room, a.nd two small lounges or meetlng rooms just

inside and to each side of the main entr ance.

The dining room continues the half-timber Tudor sfyle of the building’s exterior. Details include wood.
paneling extending from the floor up four-fifths of the wall height, a wooden floor, a deeply recessed

" tripartite wide window with transoms on either side, a plaster and. wood beamed ceiling, a specially.

. designed breakfront setinto the wall, and a brick fireplace with a mantle supported on wrought-iron

brackets. The beamed ceiling is arranged as two massive beams running from the fireplace wall to the
brealkfront wall, and visually supported on wooden ¢ piers in the walls, and a series of smaller beams
running crosswise to them. The wooden paneling suggests a board-and-batten pattern, with narrow
projecting portions and wider recessed portions. There is a kitchen and also a pantry arca behind the
breakfront wall. The main entrance to the diriing room — on the side opposite the kitchen — has a pair of
wooden doors with leaded glass including a central polychromatic ornamental oval.

The meeting room is located to the left orthe main entrance and is entered through an entry with sliding

pocket doors. Main details include tall French doors with leaded transoms — the central transom

including a polychromatic Tudor shield in glass — walls with neo-Classical piers and a fireplace.
The lounge is located to the.right of the main entrance and is entered through an opening flanked by a-
free-standing neo-Classical column on either side. Main details include tall French doors similar to

" those in the first meeting room, and a fireplace with Adamesque detailing. Hallways are generally long

and narrow; adorned with neo-Classical engaged piers and moldings. The second and third floors are
almost entirely occupied by residents’ rooms, These are generally small and unadorned, in a variety of
configurations.” The basement rooms are strictly utilitarian. :
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1972 Building ~ Acheson Wallace Hall .

The new building connects to the original building through the basements of each. It is a four-story
building with a partial basement below ground level. Stairs and elevator towers are constructed of
concrete block with brick exteriors. Brick facing is also used for the south and north ends of the wing;
the remainder of the building is constructed of concneie with stucco panels and wood trim. On the west -
front, each story is set back from the level of the story below, creating terraces for the upper stories. The

brick-faced stair halls visually divide the western fagade into three portions. Originally the main entrance
"was on the east front, approached by a sunken staircase; that entrance, however is ho longer in active

use. Entrance today is fhrough a round-arched open-air porch on the south front. The interior includes
public spaces on the ground story, and residential suites on the upper stories. Fach suite includes a

' numbe:r of individual bedrooms which share an oversize kitchen and living-room.
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8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria
(Mark "x* in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property
for National Register listing.}

Property.associated with events that have made
a significant contribution to the broad pattems
sf our hi siofy

X] A

Property is associated with the hves of persons
significant in our past.

Property embodi@s the distinctive characteristics .
of a type, period, or method of construction or
represents the work of a master, or possesses
high artistic valugs, or represents a significant and
distinguishahle entily whose compoenents iack
individual distinstion.

X]C

Property &as’?ieléed} or is likely to yield, information '

[1D
" important in prehistory or history,

Criteria Considerations
{Mark "x" in all boxes that apply.).

owned by a religious institution or used for .

[1A
religious purposes,
I ]¢Bll ramoved ffon% its original location
[1C  abithplace or grave -
[1D 'écametéry
[ ]E'_. a r@consérvcied building, object, orst.ruczure
[] F a commemorative property
[1G lessthan 50 years of age or achleved s:grzfﬁcance

within the past 50 years

Narrative Statement of Slgnsﬂcance :
(Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation shaeis)

Areas of Significance:

. (Enter categories from instructions)

ARCHITECTURE

HEALTH/MEDICINE

_Period of Significance:

1913-1967

Significant Dates:

1918

Significant Person:

N/A

Cultural Affiliation:

N/A

Architect/Builder:

unknown

9. Major Blbllograpi'ucai References

Bibliography

(Cita the books, arficles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.)

. Previous documentation on file (NPS):

[ ] preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67)

. has been requested,
[ 1 previously listed in.the National Register
[ 1 previously determined sligible by the National Register
[ 1 designated a National Historic Landmark
[]

1 tetorded by historic American 'Buit.djng Survey )

# : _
[ 1 recorded by Historic American Engineering Record
" _ = !

Primary location of additional data:
[ ] State Histeric Preservation Office

[ ] Other State agency

[ ] Federal Agency

[ ] Local Govemsnerst '
© [ TUniversity - -

[] Ot_her repository:
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~ The Lenox fortune was founded by Robert Lenox (1759- 1839) a Scottish immigrant who came to the

Narrative Statement of Significance ‘ - - - - o

The former Presbyterian Rest for Convalescents, a Tudor Revival building built in 1913, meets Criterion
C in the area of architecture as an outstanding example of civic architecture in Westchester County. It

also meets Criterion A for its contribution to the well-being of sick individuals unable to afford to take

care of themselves and for the civic-mindedness of several wealthy individuals. The complex of
buildings that today make up the White Plains Y, W.C.A. traces its history back to a Victorian charitable
institution, the Presbyterian Rest for Convalescents, founded by Rachel Lenox Kennedy, a member of

- New York City’s Lenox family, long known for charitable work in both medicine and Presbyterian

affairs. “The Rest,” which opened in 1893, was one of several charitable iristitutions that attempted to
meet a perceived lack of services for patients not ill enough to be kept in a hospital, but too weak to :
retum home and too poor to find suitably supportive accommodations. Mrs. Kennedy created the Rest
with a board of 17 New York women (including herself). In 1913, Susan W. Duncan, one of the original
founders, and philanthropist Emma B. Kennedy replaced the original building — & former school building

"~ with a substantially larger one, a rambling Tudor Revival building specifically designed — inlike the

original — for its purpose. All three women — Rachel Kennedy, Susan Duncan and Emma Kennedy —
shared connections to the Presbyterian Church and to families with origins in Scotland. The Rest ceased
to exist in 1967, in which year the building and grounds were given to the Y. W.C.A of White Plains and
Central Westchester, for use as a downtown residence for single women. The Y.W.C.A. built an
additional wing in 1972 in a frankly Modern idiom, but the original buﬂdmg survives today almost
entirely intact on the exterior and 1n1,er101 o :

The Lenox family fortune

United States during the Revolutionary War and became a successful merchant in what the New York
Times later described as the -

He invested his money in City real estate. In 1817 and 1818 he bought for $6,920 about 30 acres of
land between Fourth and Fifth avenues, S1xty -eighth and Seventy-fourth streets, Whlch then became

sl

. . . . i
...East India trade. His operations surpassed those of any other merchant in the country at that time.

known as the “Lenox farm.

On his death, Lenox left his estate to ﬁ-\{e daughters and an only son, James; it was James who retained -

~ the family farm which, by the time of his own death, in-1880, was said to be worth:

1 James Lenox obituary, New FYork Times, February 19, 1880 p.5.
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somethlng like $10,000,000. Mr Lenox’s sales mos‘dy at the high prices which ruled the market
frorn 1864 to 1872, made him a very rich man.

Jamés Lenox {1800-1880), who never married and had no children, devoted much of his fortune to
charitable work, most notably the Lenox Library (later to become one of the three libraries forming —
with the Astor and Tilden collections — the core of the New York Public Library) and three Presbytenan
institutions of which he was both founder and chief benefactor: the Phillips Memorial Church, the
Presbyterian home for Aged Women, and the Presbyterian Hospital. In 1873 an article in the Reformed
Church Messenger, “Liberality Amongst Wealthy Men,” noted that: :

Some of the wealthy men, in different Churches, have, during late years, manifested a considerable
degree of liberality. The Presbyterian Church have their Lenox The Ep1seopahans have their Asa-
Packer, and the Methodlsts thelr Daniel Drew.?

Four of James’s five sisters married, but a fifth, Henrietfa did not, and she and James kept house
together. James “appointed his sister Henrietta his sole Executrlx” and at his death “left her all his real
and personal estate. ...”*

When Henrietta died in 1886, she left the bulk of the fortune — in a will that other family members
confested unsuccessfully — to two nephews and a niece: Robert L., Maitland, Alexander Maitland, and
Rachel Lenox Kennedy (c. 1826- 1898), who was the daughter of Henrietta’s and James’s married sister’
- Rachel C. Kennedy It was Rachel Lenox Kennedy who founded the P1esbyter1an Rest for '
. Convalescents, : . -

Rachel Lenox Kennedy

" Rachel Lenox Kennedy — who, like her uncle James and aunt Henrietta never married — shared James’s
devotion to charitable works and Presbyterian causes (which might account for her favorable _
inheritance). In 1870, when James’s Presbyterian Home for Aged Women — 1nitia11y founded in 1866 —
opened in its new building, it was Rachel Kennedy who served as financial secretary, she was still

2 Ibid.
3 “Liberality Amongst Wealthy Men,” Reformed Chur ch Messengef April 9, 1873 P 5
4 “Miss Lenox’s Heirs,” New York Times, September 14, 1886, p. 8. - o B o
5 “Miss Lenox’s Heirs,” 15d,, “Miss Lenox’s Millions,” New York T Tmes, November 6, 1886, p 8; “Will Contest Ended,”
New York Times, April 26, 1887, p. 8.
& “The Presbycerlan Home for Aged Women,” New York Evangelist, May 19, 1870 p.6,
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serving in that capacity in 1892." She also endowed the First Presbyterian Church with an annual
stipend: ' '

It is an open secret that the tiding of the “0Old First” over the most critical period of its history, the
preservation of its time-honored individuality, and its introduction into the era of its renewed
‘prosperity, is largely due to the unstinted munificence of a single individual. We are now able to
‘announce that this same devoted friend of the old church has guaranteed to it in perpetuity an annual

gift of $4000, on condition of the church remaining in its present location and continuing to teach the

doctrines of the Westminster Standards. It is difficult to find terms in which to fitly characterize this -

noble-hearted generosity. ... Such a benefaction is so charactenstlc of the family to which the donor
belongs.... The friend in questlon is Miss Rachel L. Kennedy.?

Ms. Kennedy’s charitable work extended beyond P_resbytcria.n institutions, however, and included the
Colored Home and Hospital, the Female Bible Society, and the Infirmary for Women and Children.

" Ms. Kennedy was much influenced not only by her uncle and aunt, but also by the charitable works of
her mother, Rachel Cramer Lenox Kennedy, one of the founders of “The House of Industry” at 120 West
16" Street. Ms. Kennedy joined her mother in this enterprise. According to a family friend, writing

 after Rachel Lenox Kennedy’s death: \

[The House of Industry’s] method of aiding the nieedy is by providing sewing work forthem todoin

their homes. For nearly fifty years, Miss [Rachel Lenox] Kennedy went to it every Saturday

morning, to pay the women for the work done for it. A letter from Mrs, Whitelaw Reid, speaking of
~. how much she should miss her, says, “] dread the work of the House of Industry w1thout her "

It was from that work that Rachel I{ennedy:

came in contact with the worthy poor — v151ted them in thelr homes, came to know personally of
then shuggles and worth, and needs.. :

Before long, she had hired a doctor:

to visit and relieve in cases of sickness. A minister, the Rev. Dr. Charles Wood of Brooklyn made for
her regular visits upon all these families, to serve them in their religious interests, seeking their
-association with the nearest church of any denomination, in which they could find themselves at home —
he substantially the1rpasto1 And a visitor, a Christian woman, was engaged who through the

7 “A Prosperous Plesbyteuan Home, New York Times, April 29, 1892 P 9. .
& “The Meetmg of Synod,” New York Observer and Chronicle, October 18, 1894, p. 337.

f
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{‘ year watched these poor oeople, ministered to their necessities, and made a monthly report to Miss
Kennedy. So every month hundreds of dollars were distributed wisely and kindly....

From “this personal interest in tlle'poor” Ms. Kennedy evolved the idea of:

A rural restmg place nigh the mty, for ’med women, worn w1th anxieties and hardsh1ps on recovermg
from illness.. ‘

- This idea soon took form as the Presbyterian Rest for Convalescents, iln White Plains.’

The Presbyterian _Rest for Convéleécents_ ,

The concep’c ofa country' retreat for the poor or ill, or both, was not new. Many religious organizations
maintained such facilities. According to an 1893 article, “Summer Outings for the Poor™ '

Neaﬂy every rich church in New York has a farm or summer home of i 1ts own. The Episcopalians
are more enterprising in this matter than the other churches. The Memorial Church on Washington
" Square has.a Home at Brattleboro, Vermont; Grace Church has one at Far Rockaway; the Church of
the Incarnation, at Lake Mogehan; Emanuel Church, at Sing Sing. At Farmingdale, L.L, there is the
St. Andrew’s Cattage for boys from seven to sixteen years of age, and (carried on by the samie ,
somety ~the Episcopal Order of the Holy Cross) the St. Anne’s Cottage for women and g1rls and St.
Bartholomew s Church has just opened one at Washmgton Connecticut. 10

More spemﬁcally, a “Rest for ConValescent Men” had opened in 1881:

Th1s new chanty was instituted for taking care of men who have been discharged from the hosp1tals

/' but are not quite strong enough to seek or enter upon employment The “Rest” gives them quiet, a -
good bed, good food; and the requisite medicine; yntil they can go forth. There are no salaries. It is
a most economically- managed chanty, under the care of the Sisters of the Stranger.'!

It was a similar organization, but intended for women residents, that Rachel Kermedy opened in. 1 893,

In 1892, Ms. Kennedy bought the former Alexander Institute on a tract of land in White Plains, near the
intersection of North Broadway and Park Avenue. This was a boarding school; she bought it from the

former prmelpal Mr, O.R. Willis, for $15,000."

9 All quotations from A .R. Macoubrey, “Miss Rachel Lenox Kennedy,” New York Evangelist, May 19, 1870 PP 6 ff

10 George J, Manson, “Summer Qutings for the Poor,” Outlook August 5, 1893, p. 258.

11 “The ‘Rest’ For Convalescent Men,” Christian Advocate, May 5, 1881; p.10.

12 Reroda Hoffiman, Yesterday in White Plains: 4 Picture sttory of a Vanished Era (White Plains Historical Soc1ety, 2003;
first edition, 1981), p. 84.
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By 1912, White Plains had long been established as Westchester County’s governmental seat, as well as

_its commercial center. The introduction of railroad lines during the 1840s had led to major population
growth in both the county and the town, and the southern part of Westchester had effectively become a
suburb of New York City.

North Broadway, close to the White Plains downtown business district, had developed as a handsomely
landscaped residential corridor, lined with elegant suburban villas. One of the few survivors today from
that period is “Mapleton” at 52 North Broadway (listed on the National Register) not far from the newly
purchased Kennedy plot. The Presbyterian Rest, however, was not the first such institution to locate

.here. In the same years, another New York City religious organization, in search of a country retreat for
its charitable works, had also discovered North Broadway. Tn 1890, the Sisters of Divine Compassion,
devoted to providing services for New York’s poorest children, had bought the home of John M. Tilford,
and named the new institutiont “Good Counsel.” It would serve as a summer retreat both for the order |
and for the children they cared for. Four years later, the Sisters bought neighboring Mapleton,

~ incorporating it into what eventually becarme a 51zable complex (also listed on the Natlonal Register), all

just across the street from the Presbyterian Rest :

Ms. Kennedy mibht have discovered or been attracted to, the North Broadway site because of the
Sisters’ precedent. Perhaps more important, however, from Ms. Kennedy”s point of view, her newly .-
purchased property was also situated just two blocks north of an existing Presbyterran church and
cemetery (between Barker Avenue and Spring Street). Having bought the property in 1892, 1 Ms.
Kennedy turned to creating an organization. Together with 16 other New York women, in 1893 she
incorporated the Presbyterian Rest for Convalescents According to the Certificate of Incorporation:

The business and objects of the said Corpdration are to provide temporary shelter and care for
convalescent Protestant persons and for that purpose to establish malntam and operate a homie for
their reoeptron care and maintendnce. .

In 1894, Ms. 'Kermedy transferred ownership of the property to the new corporation, for the token price
of one dollar.'s The PreQbytel ian Rest officially opened on June 1St 1893. As reported in the New York
Times:

13 See Nat1ona1 Register nomination, Good Counsel Complex., listed 1996. i
14 Westchester County deeds, Liber 1294, Page 343. I am indebted to Elaine Massena, Westchester County archivist, for this
information, as well as for the infonmation about the Certificate of Incotporation and gift of the property in 1894 (see below).
15 Certificate of Incorporation, December 21st, 1893, Westchester County Archives, A-0050 (5) p.61.

16 Westchester County deeds, Liber 1387, page. 407.
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White Plains, June 3 - The Presbyterian Rest, for convalescents, an adjunct to the Presbyterian -
Hospital of New-Yark, was opened at White Plains Thursday. Dr. Duffield of the First Presbyterian
Church, New-York, and Dr. A. R. Macoubrey of the White Plains Presbyterian Church [the church

~ two blocks from the Rest] conducted the religious exercises. Many well-known New-York 1adles

were in attendance

Katheune Nash Dufﬁeld and Elizabeth K. Macoubrey, wives of the two d1v1nes were among the Rest’s
17 directors and, no doubt, among the we11~kn0wn New-York ladies.” :

" The Rest...contains forty beds for the accommodation of Protestant poor discharged from hospitals
and otherwise properly recommended. The limit of the sojourn is two weeks, unless contrary orders
‘are given by the Board of management, which is composed of New-York women.'”

The Rest — as it. was often ealled at first occupied the old house on beautifully landscaped grounds,
which helped create the restful atmosphere de51red for the institution, An 1895 article descrlbed the
' grounds in glowmg terms: -

' [The older part of] White Plains...has the characteristic beauty of a New England town, its principal
avenue being park-like in its broad expanse of green with trees and shrubbery... . When I heard that
this beautiful charity was established in the former home of Professor Willis, I was thankful that the .

~place was devoted to such purposes as tend to the preservation of its natural treasures. For.thirty
vears Professor Willis cultivated these grounds with the intelligent enthusiasm of one whose life is
largely devoted to botanical studies. His published works on these subjects are widely known. ... His
work continued until its results are now seen in thirty or forty varieties of trees and a large number of
the choicest shrubs, surrounding the “Rest” with the grateful shade, the luxuriant beauty and the
‘fragrant chalm wh1ch are not least among the joys of Parachse that smvwed the fall. -

The article described the plantings in detail, notmg in particular that Professor Wllhs had removed
" ailanthus, and p]anted many varieties of magnolia.

. To the garden lover thls brief record is more than a mere catalogue of familiar objects. Delicate and -
weary women coming to this “Rest’ in White Plains will find new interests and pleasures as they
come into closer fellowship with these hvmg, growing thoughts of Him who planted the cedars of
Lebanon where the birds make their nests. 18

17 “Openmg of the Presbytenan rest * New York Times, June 4, 1893, p.14.
18 “Marks and Remarks by “Wendel,” New York Observer and Chronicle, March 14, 1895 p.335.
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_In 1897, the Rest’s third annual report — noted in the New York Times — stated that since the last report,
the Rest had sheltered 290 women.'® This initial success must have been gratifying to Ms. Kennedy, but
that annual report would be the last she would see, as she died the following year. Though guests were
expected to pay somethmg for their residence, the rate was only a token fee

"One of the latest enterprises 1s the Presbyterian Rest for Convalescents at White Plains, New York,
where shelter and care are provided for two weeks for Protestant women who may be discharged
from hospitals, or otherwise properly recommended the price of board is $2 per week. 20

| The modest fees couldn’t cover the costs of operating the Rest, so it became a favorite obj ect of charity
for the “well- known Now~Y0rk ladies™ who ran 1t In 1898, the New York Times recounted a “Musicale

- for Charity” held as a fund- ra1ser

The musicale in aid of the Rest for Convaleseents, at White Plains, N.Y., a charitable institution in
which a number of fashionable and wealthy New York women are interested, was the chief social
event of yesterday afternoon. It took place at the Astor Gallery at 3 o’clock, and about 500 people
~ met. Victor Harris played all the accompaniments.... The programme yesterday was opened by a
duet by Mrs. Ella Jocelyn-Horne, contralto, and Ross David, tenor. Miss Laura Sanford, the young
pianist, then played. Miss Marguerite Hall, soprano, later gave “le Chevalier de Belle-Etoile,” by
Holmes, with good effect. Miss Janet Allen also played the violin, and Arthur Clayton Brown sang
two baritorie solos. The programme ended with Chaminade’s “Barcarole,” sung by Mrs. Horne and |

- Miss sztll21 ' . ,

Another event made the Times in 1901:

- Tableaus on an elaborate scale will be given at the Waldorf-Astoria on Feb. 28 in aid of the
Presbyterian Rest for Convalescents at White Plains, The managers of the Rest, including Miss
Parish, Mrs. Granville B. Smith, Mrs. Whitelaw Reid, Mrs. John P. Duncan, Mrs. A Brayton Ball,
Mrs. Howard Duffield, and Mrs. Alexander McLean, are already at work on the tableaus, aided by’
Louis Loeb, the artist, who has designed the pictures especially for the occasion. There will be
music by celebrated artists. Tickets and boxes can be obtained on application to Mrs, John P.
Duncan, 9 East Sixty- fourth Street, and to Mrs Alexa_ndel McLean, 149 West Th1rty-fou1'th Street.”

Vari‘ous f_riends of the Rest also left it significant beques_ts.

" 19 “Lends Aid to Convalescents,” New York Times, February 16, 1897, p.4.
20 George J. Manson, “Summer Outings for the Poor,” Outlook August 5, 1893, p.258.
21 “A Musicale for Charity,” New York Times, March 11, 1898, p. 7.
22 “Living Pictures for Charity,” New York Times, February 17, 1901, p. 7.
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An article in the New York Evangelist by Dr. AR. Macolubrey, of thé neighboring White Plains
Presbyterian Church, described an annual recéption given at the Rest in June of 1898:

An exceedingly enj oyable afternoon was that of the annual reception at the Presbyterlan Rest for

' Convalescents in White Plains, New York, last Thursday, May 19th. The day was balm itself, and
the beautiful grounds with their venerable trees, and the young leaves and blossoms of spring, were
very attractive. By special car the lady directors resident in New York came with their friends, and
were met by those of the vicinity.... :

Many a worthy woman worn under life’s burden of care, and many an 1nvahd slowly gathering back
strength, besides those whose letters of gratefulness have come to the Institution, have blessed God
for the-few weeks spent at it, a rest to them not a little suggesting “the rest that remaineth.”

' One cannot but wish that the thoughtful, generous founder of the Rest, Miss Rachel L. Kennedy of
New York, and they who with her are giving sympathy and aid to it, could often see the quiet .
enjoyment of its guests under the trees in the summer, and the picture of comfort presented by those
who are grouped in its parlors under the winter evening's lamp. Who can gather up all the story of
the good.done by those who are the heritors of the sp1r1t of her, who in Bethany poured all her

treasured omtment upon the Lord's feet?” , o

The following year, an article in the same paper described three major Presbyterian charities, all of them
funded by the Lenox family: the Presbyterlan Haospital, the Presbyterian I—Iome for Aged Women, and
the Presbytertan Rest:

The delightful Presbyterian Rest for Convalescents is a charity that is chiefly due to the thoughtful
benevolence of the late Miss Rachel Kennedy. It ... receives about fifteen at a time of “worthy
Protestant women” discharged from hospitals or otherwise dependent on personal care. Itis an
incorporated institution and its real estate is worth $80,000. The annual expenses are about $5,000. -
Over three hundred patients have passed through it within a year. They pay $2 a week, a small share
of what is expended for them. There is such a pressure for admission into every hospital that patients
* only “half sick” are often discharged while unfit for regular work. This “Rest” bridges over that
' . convalescent stage. The need is everywhere recognized by experts in benevolence. #

The Rest_contin‘ued its work into the 20" cel_ltury." A 1906 article described it as -

23 “The Plesbytenan Rest,” 51gned “ARM,” New York Evangel.rst June 2, 1898, p. 12.
24 Francis H. Marling, DD, “Some Presbyteuan Charities,” New York Evangelist, May 25, 1899 pd.
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... arest in every sensé of the word. Situated in Broadway, the most beautiful street in the old
historic town, the old colonial house, with its wide piazza and tall white columns, sufrounded by
frees and shrubbery of many varieties, presents a most attractive and inviting appearance.... One -
need only-to step into the hall to feel the quiet and restfulness which pervade the place. The
tastefully furnished parlors and the cosy library with its cases of books and easy chairs seem to say:
“Come and rest.” The bedrooms are neatly furnished and everything throughout is immaculately
clean,,,. Everything is done to meke the guests coznfortabie and make the household as near as -
passfsle one large fams.ly

But perhaps the best descnptlon of the Rest is an artmie of 1908, written by “One Who Came and
Rested”: : .

The self-supporting woman of to-day represents a body of many thousands in hundreds of different

trades and professions, for many are the doors that have opened to her for her work.

‘Butin case ofa breakdown in the harness of the daily routine at the school, office, store or factory,

she knows not where she can at anominal expense recuperate and regain the lost strength. She looks
about and despairs at the prices asked at seashore resorts and health-giving mountain boarding -

- houses. No one can deny that the woman of today is still the weaker vessel, though she is braver and

more self reliant than the woman of fifty years ago; butstill she is the creature with delicate nerves ;
and znuscies that were never intended for the rougher services of life. - _ :

A pIace where a reﬁned salf—supportmg woman could go “to rest awhile” had'see'mingly not been
thought of until 1893, when Miss Rachel Lenox Kennedy founded the Rest for Convalescents at
White Plains, N.Y. ... [and] chose its managers from among her own friends who she knew would
be in sympathy with her purpose. Since Miss Kennedy’s death in' 1898, the managers have

“successfully carried out her plans. Last year they assisted 255 to shelter and rest; and many more’

. and fret of the city streets a welcome haven-of rest to the weary ones who seek and find rest

could be accommodated if there were more heated rooms in the winter season. Recently various

" improvements have been made, and the premises have a most attractive and homelike appearance.

The Rest is situated in Broadway, the most beautiful street in White Plains. “The old colonial house, . ‘
with its wide veranda and tall white columns, is surrounded by extensive and beautiful grounds in |
which trees, shrubs and flowers abound. It has the appearance of a place of refuge from the turmoil

25 Miss May Bverett Grover, “Rest for Convalescents,” qu Yor}’c Observer and Chronicle, May 10; 1506, p, 604. '
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" The ladies on the committee have taken pains that the interior of the Home should first be thought of;
and it is to their credit that we find here so many comforts for the guests. The library consists of
more than six hundred books and many magazines. The parlors are attractive, with a homelike
appearance that immediately gives the visitor a feeling of rest and welcome. In the evening the

" guests assemble here and listen to music from the piano, Whﬂe all join in singing familiar hymns and
songs, led usually by one of the guests.

Everything here speaks of the good wﬂl that was meant for those less fortunate than their more
fortunate sisters who have sheltered lives and comfortable homes with loved ones to minister to
them. Itis indeed good to be here. The present rates are too low to make it possible to provide many
things that are still needed, but to raise the price of board would exclude many who need the benefits
of the Home most. This article is written in the hope that it may be read by some one. who will see a
way to help in extending this work so that many more, like the writer, who need it may come and rest
and grow strong.” '

Thaf-ne,ed to extend the work, “so that many more... who need it may come and rest and grow strong,”
gventually led, in 1913, to the replacement of the old house by a significantly larger building.

' Susan W. Duncan and Emma B. Kennedy

In 1913 = twenty years after first opening — the Rest was well established, but Rachel Lenox Kennedy —

- its founder, funder and “first directress” — was long=since deceased. Funds for the new building came
instead from two other Presbyterian New Yorkers: Susan W. Duncan (generally identified at the time as
Mrs. John Paterson Duncan) and Emma Baker Kennedy (generally identified at the time as Mrs. John
Stewart Kennedy) In the words of a memorial plaque st111 affixed to the wall 111s1de the buﬂdmg s main
enfrance: : : -

| FOUNDED
: BY )

M‘SS RACHEL LENOX KENNEDY
1893 '

PRESENT BUILDING ERECTED
BY i

M JOI—IN STEWART KENNEDY
1913+

26 “Rest for Plesbytel ian Women: Convalescents Grateful for the Worthy Insututlou at White Plams ” “By One Who Came
and Rested,” New York Observer and Chronicle, February 27, 1908, p.280. T )
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Susan W. Duncan (1 840 1923) was one of the original 17 founders of the Rest. She served as “Second

- Directress” from 1895 to 1908, and “First Directress” from 1908 to 1912, becoming “President” in 1912
a position she held until her death.”” Daughter of banker James Stuart, she married John Paterson
Duncan (1829-1901), head of John Duncan’s Sons, a wholesale grocers and manufacturers firm founded
by his father, also John Duncan, another immigrant from Scotland. 28 John Paterson Duncan’s interests
included the Duncan Realty Company. Thé Duncans were longtime members of Manhattan’s Fifth

~ Avenue Presbyterian Church, and were both active in Presbyterian philanthropies. John Duncan served

" on the board of managers of Presbyterian Hospital (founded by James Lenox, Rachel Lenox Kennedy’s
uncle); Susan Duncan and Rachel Kennedy certainly moved in the same circles. Susan Duncan s
mother, Mrs. Elizabeth Whltewrlght Stuart, had also been active in Presbyterian charities.”’

Emma Baker Kennedy (1833-1930) was a daughter of Cornelius Baker one of the founders of New
York University.”® Her husband, John Stewart Kennedy (L830- -1909)" was yet another immigrant from
Scotland who accumulated great wealth, as the principal of the financial company J.S. Kennedy & Co.,
and through interests in a variety of U.8. and Canadiari railroads. Kennedy gave generously. to charmes,
particularly those with Presbytenan connections. He also served as president of the Presbyterian
Hospital (founded by James Lenox), and much of his charitable giving went to that institution. Like the
Duncans, the Kennedy’s were long-standing members of the Fifth Avenue Presbyterian Church; though
Mrs. Kennedy was not one of the original 17 founders of the Presbyterian Rest, she and Mrs. Duncan
_would have known each other from the church, and their husbands from their positions on the Board of
Presby‘cerlan Hospltal : :

- When Kennedy died in 1909, he left a fortune of $60,000,000; he left $13,000,000 to his widow, another
large sum to various relatives, and fully $30,000,000 te a variety of institutions, including $10,000,000
to the Presbyterian Chirch, and substantial amounts to Columbia University, the Metropolitan Museum
of Art, and the New York Public Librad-y In the words of the New York Times:

The giving of $30,000, OOO in a lump sum to public benefactlons is one of the largest of such pubhc
bequests made in this country

27 Her p051t10ns are Hsted on'a memorial plaque also still affixed to the wall inside the building’s main entrance. Her
daughter, Susan Stuart Duncan, also served as president of the Rest, from 1930-1958. ’
28 “John Paterson Duncan Dead,” New York Tribune, April 8, 1901, p.12,
29 “Some Charitable Bequests,” New York Times, February 25, 1891, p.8.
30 “Mrs, 1.8, Kennedy Dies in Bar Harbor—W1dow of PhIIanthl oplst Had Herself Gwen Mllhons to Many Charltles » New

" York Times, July 24,1930, p. 15. T
31“1.8. Kennedy Dead of Whooping Cough,” New I’o:k Times, November 1, 1909 p.11. Kennedy was no known relation to
Rachel Lenox Kennedy. : .
32 “How They’ 11 Spend Kennedy Millions,” New York Times, November 7, 1909, p. 1.
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That sum put him in a league, according to the ilewspaper, W1th such titans as J ohn D Rockefeller,
. Andrew Carnegie and Mrs. Russell Sage

From 1909 until her death in 1930, Mrs. Kennedy became a major phiianthr’opist in her own right:

Like her husband Mrs. Kennedy was a giver of large sums for philanthropic purposes, which were
usually of a religious or education nature. And like her husband she gave so quietly that oftert her
gifts did not become publicly known until long after they had been made. The total ofher
benefacu%ns was estunated at more than $2, 000 000. Tt is quite hkely to have fare [sic] exceeded.
that sum. ‘

Iﬁ 1909, the Times described her ae taking “her dead husband’s piace as benefactor of the Presbyterian :
. Hospital.”* Much of her phllanthropy — like that of her husband involved fundmg new buildings for
eharltdble institutions. Tn 1912, she donated an : :

:..eight-story Chrlstlan Workers® hotel...to the New York Mission and Tract Soelety . The hotel
Wlll be used exclusively by the women workers engaged in the city Work of the society. Thé Rev.
Dr. A.F. Schauffler, a Presbyterian minister and brother-in-law of Mrs. Kennedy, is President of the

‘society. It has several east side branches, and one, latterly estabhshed in anew bulldlng given by
- Ms, Kennedy, in Macdougal Street on the lower west side.” :

That same year she:

...provided $90,000 for the erection of the Cornelius Baker Hall of Philosophy at [New York] ,
umversﬂy Other gifts by Mrs. Kennedy were $125,000 for the Fort Schuyler Presbyterian Church
in the Bronx...$200,000 to build a Waldensian Church in Rome.. .4 Y.W.C.A. building at Bar
Harbor, Me, as a memorial to her husband, and $100,000 to the Bible Teachers Training School at 54
Lexmgton Avenue.”®

. That list of benefactions included “$125,000 to the Presbytenan rest.at White Plains,” a large part of
which would have been the cost of the new building.

© 33 “Mrs, J.5. Kennedy Dies in Bar Harbor,” op.cit.
34 “City’s Poor Have Feasts,” New York Times, December 26, 1909, p. 7.
15 “Tearing Down Greer House,” New York Times, October 20, 1912, p. 16,
36 “Mrs, 1.5, Kennedy Dies in Bar Harbor,” op. ¢if.
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- The new building -

While the original Presbyterian Rest accommodated fifteen women at a time, the new building could
accommodate upwards of 90 women. The original building was a gracious, two-story-and-attic Greek
Revival mansion with a central Doric porch. The new building (architect undetermined) was a rambling,
three-story and basement Tudor Revival complex, complete with half-timbered gable roofs, on an H-

" plan — a handsome, large and unusually p1cturesque example of the style.

Tudor was one of the various mecheval revival styles much in voguc in the early. 20 century. In
particular, it represents the residential side of that vogue; in that period, religious and educational ,
buildings — and ogeasionally commercial as well - preferred a more academic Gothic Revival. Tudor

~ appealed to architects of the day as a picturesque style appropriate to the suburbs, one that could make

use of a variety of materials, shapes and textures, as well as a large natural site suitable for plantings - all
of these characteristics suitable to the history and site of the Rest. -

Typical elements of‘a Tudor house — all found at the Rest — include full-length French doors, and
numerous windows connecting the inside with the natural world outside. Windows — often grouped
together — could be decorative, leaded windows, casements, bays or oriels. Larger buildings were often
faced with masonry or decorative brick but could also have stucco contrasting with areas of dark wood

framing or stone — the “half-timber Tudor” look. The massing was usually irregular and was emphasized

by large and prominent gables, and chimneys with multiple stacks.

The Tudor style ultimately suggested dignified prosperity' 57 By using Tudor, the architect of the Rest
was signaling to its future residents a sense of suburban well-being. No contemporary descnptmns of
the Rest’s new building are known to survive, but a 1963 article descnbed the scene:

The moment you step inside “The Rest” at 69 N. Broadway you see how aptly it is named. Wide.

corridors carpeted in eheerful green, high ceilings which soften harsh sounds without the deadening

effect of modern “sound control” and seemingly endless rooms, varying in size and use, gwe the
_visitor a feeling of welcome and relaxatlon

On May 14 the 70" anh—iversary of this unique insti‘tution will be celebrated with an invitation tea at
' Which‘ a granddaughter of Robert Frost wﬂl be the featured speaker. ..

- Its lawns are wide and green, with green shade trees which house smgmg blI'dS in front and fruit trees

that blossom in spring at the back '

37 James Massey. and Shirley Maxwell, House Styles in America, 219.
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“The sun porches are gaily decorated in soft yellows; the bedrooms are homey, lacking the

“institutional” look and all have either a private bath or running water; the dining room, large enough
to feed everyone at once, manages to keep a cozy atmosphere by reason of oak-paneled walls and a
wide ﬁreplaee visible from all tables

~ The main floor rooms include a number of parlors, alcoves and cubby-holes.... The eorridor walls
contdin several unostentatious plaques with the names of former patrons and ohe room which boasts
a small brass plate simply reading “Mother’s Room.” The origin of this has apparently been lost in

_ history...

Despite its age, the entire home has an unmistakable air of cleanliness, due no doubt to the constant
modernization of the equipment. But the leaded windows, the deep bays, the Vrctorran ﬁreplaces

~  have not we are glad to say, grven way 1o the march of progress

. Later h‘istory'_‘

By 1940 the Rest’s name had been shortened to “The Rest for Convaleseents”” The Rest continued in
operation until 1967, in which year it ﬁnally closed

..due to the ‘changing patterns of convalescent heeds. The Chairman of the Board of Managers of
the Rest...announced today that the buildings, furnishings and grounds estimated at more than $5
hundred thousand, have been given to the Young Women’s Christian Association of White Plains
and Central Westchester; to be used as a downtown residence. The main building. .. will be called
the “Kennedy-Duncan Residence” in memory of the two founders, Miss Rachel Lenox Kennedy and
Mrs. Jolm Paterson Duncan both of New York City.*”®

In 1972, the YWCA expanded the property, adding a modern residential wing attached to the original
“building. The new wing was designed by James D. Lothrop, Architects, and was the winner of a First

Honor Award by the A.LA., Westchester/Mid-Hudson Chapter, and Honorable Mention by the New -
York State A.LA, Ifs construetron was funded by the Wallace Foundation. Lila Acheson Wallace, a
founder of Readel s Digest, was a maj or New-York ‘based philanthropist — her contribution to the Y thus -

38 “At ‘“The Rest,” — Tea to Mark 70" Year of Convalescent Home ” umdentlﬁed newspaper ehppmg, dated May 2, 1963

" from Hoffiman Scrapbooks, “Clippings, Vol. 3 p.165™ at the White Plains City Archives. -

39 “Mrs. Henry Stewart,” New York Times, November 5, 1940, p. 25
40 “ “The Rest’ Becomes Downtown YWCA Residence,” unidentified newspaper clipping, dated November 16, 1967, from
Hoffman SCI apbooks, “Chppmws Vol. 3 p.167" at the White Plains Clty Archives.

AT
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continuing the tradition of financial support by New York women of an institution that serves other
women. ' ‘

Conclusion

The former Presbyterian Rest for Convalescents survives today as a handsome example of the Tudor
Revival style, and of late 19%- and early-20" century philanthropic institutions. It embodies the history
of a number of prominent New York families — notably the Lenox family, well-known for philanthropic
efforts — as well as the history of high society philanthropy in New York City, the history of the tightly

~ connected community of wealthy Presbyterians of Scottish descent, the history of convalescent care, and
the history of White Plains. In its current use as a YWCA res1dence fer women, it contmues inan

_ updated version of its original function.
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 Presbyierian Rest for Convalescents ™ ' ' " Wesichester County, New York
Name of Property o _ ‘ - County and State .

10. Gecgraphical Data

Acreage of Property _less than one acre

UTM References :
{F’!ace additlonal UT™ seferereces ona oontmuatmrz sheet.)

1 11]8] 16I0§3|5I8§7I l4|5!4¥3f716|6] N e I 1 3 N 0 A

Zone 'Easting - Northmg : Zone Easting Northing
2§.§|8IIII§I'§I|-I§:F1I:Il" . 4I1§8I|II§.I§‘I§§_III‘H

'
; "

Verbal Boundary Description
{Describe the bqgr;cia;ies of the properly on a continuation sheet.)

Beur;dary Justification
(Expiain why the boundarias were selected on a continuation sheet.)

11. Form Prepared By

namefiitle _ contact: Pe‘%er D. Shaver {zsee ccjntir%uatiod sheaeh)

'organizaﬁon New York State Office_of Parks, Recreation & Historic P%eservatson _date December 24, 2010
s%reet& rsumber P O Box §89 Peebles {sland -. : telephone 518~237 8643
city or town - _Waterf_ord : ' ‘ : | - state NY . 7p code _12188 .

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the completed form:

Cohtinuatioh Sheets

| Maps

AUSGS map(7.50r 15 minute series) indica’ting the property’s location
A Sketch map for hssiorsc dlstncts and properties havmg large acreage Or NUMErous resources.
Photographs

, Representative black aqci white ph‘otogrééhs of the p_roperty.

Additional items
{Check with SHPO or FPO fo; any a&éltsonai items)

?roperty Owner (Complete this item at the request of the SH PO or FPO}

naime :
street & number, : B — B ' telephone
city or fown ' ) , : ' state L Zip code A

. ?aperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is-being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate
-properties For listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response (o this request is required {o obtain a
. bengfit in a{:cerdance with the National Historie Pregervation Act, as amended {16 US.C. 470 etseq)

Estsmatad Burcfen Statement: public a‘eponmg burden for this form is est[mated to average 18.1 hours per response mcludmg time for rewewxng
sr%s%s'&ciisﬁs gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviswing the form, Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect of
this form to the Chief, Adminisirative Services Dw|saor1, Natlonal Pask Service, P.C. Box 37127, Washington, D.C. 20503
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Geographical Data
Verbal Bouﬁdary Description

" The boundaries of Presbyterian Rest for Convalescents are shown by a heavy line on the attached tax
map. ' C ' :

RS

Boundary Justification

The nominated property includes the lot that has been historically associated with the Presbyterian Rest
for Convalescents. The 1972 building is-minimally connected to the 1913 building; however it is
visually separate and therefore for the purposes of this nomination it is considered a non-contributing
building. When it was constructed, the ofiginal entrance stairs of the 1913 building were removed and

the setting of that building was compromised; however the architect of the new building was sensitive to

the 19 13 bulldmg n the 31t1ng of the new building.
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PHOTOGRAPH KEY . " Westchester County, New York .

Photographer Anthony Robins
Thompson & Columbus, Inc. -
" 50 West 67th Street, Suite 1-F
New York, NY 10023

‘Date: CJuly 2008' |
- Tiff Files: CD-R of .tiff files on ﬂle at
National Park Service
Washington, DC, and
Historic Pleservatmn Field Services Bureau
Peebles Island
‘PO Box 189
Waterford, NY 12188-0189
: NY'_WestchesterCountym69N.BroddwayPhoto

Exterior: east facade, looking southwest-

1.
2. Exterior: east fagade, central portion, looking west
3. Exterior: east fag:ad@,' central portion, main entrance
4. Exterior: south elevation, looking northwest
5. Exterior; west elevation, looking east . -
6. Exterior: west elevation, porch on north wing, looking east
7. Exterior: west elevation, porch on north wing, detail ‘
8.. Exterior: north and west elevatlons looking southeast
. 9. Interior: dining room
10. Interior: dining room, breakfront -
11. Interior: dining room, fireplace
12. Interior: dining room, leaded-glass entrance door
13. Interior: meeting room just inside and to the right (north) of the main entrance
14, Interior: meeting room just inside and to the right (north) of the main entrance, fireplace-
15. 1972 wing, south and east elevations, looking northwest
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eliminating racism

ywca of white plains & central westchester

:v?lgowermg women www.ywcawhiteplains.com

Mz, Peter D. Shaver

ECEIVE

JUL 21 2008

HISTORIC PRESERVATION
FIELD SERVISES BUREAU

Historic Preservation

Program Analyst o L R
New York State Office o{‘_' Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation '
Historic Preservation Field Services Bureau - Peebles Island

PO Box 189 ‘ -

Waterford, New York 12188 — 0189

June 16, 2008

Re: Statement of Owner Support for the State and National Registets of Historic Places

Dear Mr. Shaver,

The YWCA of White Plains and Central Westchester is the owner of the Kennedy Duncan
Residence property located at 69 North Broadway, White Plains, New York, 10603. The YWCA
of White Plains and Central Westchester supports its consideration in the State and National

Registers of Historic Places.

Sincerely,

&

E.jBatbara Wiggins
President

Maria Imperial

Activity Center: 515 North Street » White Plains, NY 10605 - (914) 949-6227

Chief Executive Officer

Residence:  Kennedy Duncan / Acheson Wallace Hall » 68 North Broadway » White Plains, NY 10803 » (914) 428-1130
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